
IDAHO 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 

Ethan L. Silver 
Carter Ledyard & Milburn LLP 
2 Wall St 
New York, NY 10005-2072 

March 9, 2016 

Re:  -- No-Action Request 

Dear Mr. Silver 

C. L. "BUTCH" OTTER 
Governor 

GAVINM.GEE 
Director 

We have reviewed the request for a no-action position dated February 25, 2016, on behalf of 
 (the "Client"), a New York State chartered bank with no place of 

business in Idaho. The Client represents that it will soon withdraw from NYSE and FINRA 
membership. The Client will continue to conduct securities-related business, relying on Section 
3(a)(4)(B) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Regulation R which exempt banks that 
engage in limited securities activities from the requirement to register as a broker-dealer under 
federal law. 

Under Section 102(4)(c) of the Idaho Uniform Securities Act (2004) (the "IUSA") a bank is 
excluded from the definition of a broker-dealer when its securities related activities are limited to 
those activities specified in certain sub-sections of Sections 3(a)(4)(B) and 3(a)(5) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934. However, the Client also engages in one additional securities-related activity 
in Idaho - Non-Custodial Lending Transactions. The Client represents that it is exempt from broker­
dealer registration under federal Regulation R when conducting this activity. Unfortunately, this 
additional securities-related activity would technically require the Client to register in Idaho as a 
broker-dealer. 

The Client also represents that it would only conduct Non-Custodial Lending Transactions in 
Idaho with institutional investors, an activity which exempts the Client from registration as a broker­
dealer in Idaho under Section 401(b)(l)(C) of the IUSA. 

The Department agrees to take no enforcement action against the Client as an unregistered 
broker-dealer if the Client limits its activities in Idaho to those enumerated in Section 102( 4)( c) of 
the IUSA, and Section 24 7. 772 of Regulation R with Idaho institutional investors. 

The Department's position is based on the written facts presented your letter. If those facts or 
circumstances change, are inaccurate, or incomplete our position may change. 

Kurt Merritt 
Securities Analyst 
Idaho Department of Finance 

SECURITIES BUREAU 
Bureau Chief - Jim Burns 

800 Park Boulevard, Suite 200, Boise, ID 83712 
Mail To: P.O. Box 83720, Boise ID 83720-0031 

Phone: (208) 332-8004 Fax: (208) 332-8099 
http://finance.idaho.gov 
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CARTER LEDYARD &  MILBURN LLP 
                           Counselors at Law 

  
2 Wall Street 

New York, NY 10005-2072 
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February 25, 2016 

VIA E-MAIL 
 
Patty Highley 
Idaho Department of Finance 
800 Park Blvd. Suite 200 
Boise, Idaho 83712 
 

Re: Broker-Dealer Bank Registration Exemptions 

Ms. Highley: 

We are writing on behalf of our client,  (the “Client”), to 
request that your office issue a no-action letter based on the Background and Discussion below. 

Background and Discussion 
 
We initially spoke with Kurt Merritt on January 28, 2016 (the “Conversation”) regarding 

our questions relating to applicable broker-dealer registration exemptions for banks under 
Idaho’s Securities Act (“Idaho’s Act”).  During the Conversation, we discussed that our client, 
which is a New York State chartered bank with no place of business in Idaho (the “Client”), 
plans to withdraw from NYSE membership, and will therefore also be required to withdraw from 
FINRA membership.  Going forward, the Client will rely on Section 3(a)(4)(B) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and the regulations promulgated thereunder 
(“Regulation R”), which exempt banks that engage in certain limited securities activities from 
the requirement to register as a broker-dealer under federal law.  Accordingly, after withdrawing 
from NYSE and FINRA, the Client will limit its securities-related activities to those specified in 
Section 3(a)(4)(B) of the Exchange Act and Regulation R, and will not engage in any traditional 
securities brokerage activities, such as trading, underwriting or investment banking.   

 
Unfortunately, from a technical perspective, the Client’s reliance on the exemptions from 

federal registration does not necessarily exempt it from registration in Idaho because § 30-14-
102 of Idaho’s Act, while explicitly recognizing the exemptions under the Exchange Act, does 
not  appear to include the exemptions under Regulation R.  Nevertheless, we can assure you that 
our Client intends to engage in only one additional securities-related activity in Idaho beyond 
those limited activities that exclude a bank from the definition of a broker-dealer under Idaho’s 
Act.  This one activity, Non-Custodial Securities Lending Transactions, which is federally 
exempt under Regulation R, will be limited to institutional investors in accordance with the 

Ethan L. Silver 
Partner 

• 
Direct Dial: 212-238-8687  
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exemption from registration under § 30-14-401(b)(1)(C) of Idaho’s Act.1  The aforementioned 
sections of Idaho’s Act, if read together, account for all of the Client’s securities-related 
activities in Idaho.   

 
Also, it is noteworthy that § 30-14-103 of Idaho’s Act demonstrates an intent to mirror 

the federal exemptions under the Exchange Act.  Pursuant to § § 30-14-103, references to federal 
statutes in Idaho’s Act, including references to the Exchange Act, mean “those statutes and the 
rules and regulations adopted under those statutes, as in effect on the date of enactment of this 
chapter, or as later amended.”  However, since Regulation R was implemented in 2007, shortly 
after the enactment of Idaho’s Act in 2004, § 30-14-103 of Idaho’s Act explicitly recognizes the 
exemptions under the Exchange Act but does not appear to include the exempt activities under 
Regulation R.  From a timing perspective, if Idaho’s Act had been enacted or amended shortly 
after Regulation R was implemented, the Client would clearly be exempt from registration as a 
broker-dealer in your state.  Therefore, to uphold the intent of Idaho’s Act, the Client should not 
be required to register if it limits its activities to those federally exempt activities listed in § 30-
14-103 of Idaho’s Act and one Regulation R activity, Non-Custodial Securities Lending 
Transactions that will be limited to institutional investors. 

 
Accordingly, we respectfully request that your office agree not to take any enforcement 

action against the Client if it does not register as a broker-dealer in your state and limits its 
activities to those described herein.   

 
To assist with your review and to offer insight into why other Uniform Securities Act 

states have agreed with our position, we’ve attached responses from Iowa, Wisconsin, U.S. 
Virgin Islands and Vermont as Exhibit A  to this letter. 

 
***** 

 
Thank you for your time and consideration.  If you have any questions regarding this 

letter or if you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact me at 
212.238.8687 or silver@clm.com. 
 

 
  

                                                 
1 This is not an attempt to evade any provisions of the securities laws as the Client is creating an appropriately 
registered broker-dealer (the “Subsidiary”), to perform the limited set of activities that fall outside of activities it can 
conduct under its bank license and bank exemptions.  The Client will use this wholly-owned subsidiary for single 
product sales of registered and private funds on behalf of the Client, activities that are not otherwise exempt from 
federal registration under Section 3(a)(4)(B) of the Exchange Act or Regulation R.  The Subsidiary will register with 
the SEC as a broker-dealer and apply for FINRA membership.  The Subsidiary will also register with Idaho as a 
broker-dealer. 
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Exhibit A 

Confirmation Letter from Iowa, Wisconsin, U.S. Virgin Islands, Vermont 
 
 





  
 
             

 
State of Wisconsin 

Department of Financial Institutions 

    
 

 

Scott Walker, Governor Ray Allen, Secretary 

 

Division of  Securities 
Mail: PO Box 1768 Madison, WI 53701-1768                                       Courier: 201 W. Washington Ave. Suite 300, Madison, WI 53703 

Voice: (608) 266-1064             Fax: (608) 264-7979            Internet: www.wdfi.org 
 

 
February 9, 2016 
 
VIA E-MAIL 
 
Ethan L. Silver 
Anup Khatri 
Carter Ledyard & Milburn LLP 
2 Wall Street 
New York, NY  10005-2072 
 
Re:  Broker-Dealer Registration Exemptions for Banks 
 
Dear Messrs. Silver and Khatri: 
 
This is in response to your letter dated January 26, 2016, regarding the application of the Wisconsin 
Uniform Securities Law to exempt a bank from broker dealer registration if its activities are limited.      
 
We agree with your reading of the Wisconsin statutes as follows:  Per §551.102(4)(c), a bank is 
excluded from the definition of broker-dealer if its activities are limited to those specified in Sections 
3(a)(4) and 3(a)(5) of the Securities Exchange Act.  If the bank is engaged in an additional activity that 
is outside of those sections of the Exchange Act, but that activity is limited to institutional investors, 
then the bank is exempt from registration as a broker-dealer under §551.401(2)(c).   
 
Therefore, based upon your representations regarding the bank’s activities, the bank would not be 
required to register as a broker dealer. 
 
Please feel free to contact us with any further questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Deborah J. Fabritz 
Director 
Professional Registration & Compliance Bureau 
Division of Securities 
 
cc.  Charles Benson, Examiner 

   
 

http://www.wdfi.org/




 

                   
 

                                                                                                                                                           
 
State of Vermont                                                                         For consumer assistance:  
Department of Financial Regulation                                                                        [Banking                     888-568-4547   
89 Main Street                                                                            [Insurance]                800-964- 1784  
Montpelier, VT 05620-3101                                                                                                           [Securities]                 877-550-3907 

                                                                                                                                                                      www.dfr.vermont.gov   
 

 
 
 

Banking                Insurance                                      Captive Insurance                                     Securities 

 802-828-3307                802-828-3301                                    802-828-3304                                     802-828-3420  

 

 

 
 
January 25, 2016 
 
 
Anup Khatri 
Carter Ledyard & Milburn LLP 
 
 
Dear Anup Khatri, 
 
The Department of Financial Regulation (Securities Division) has reviewed your request dated 
January 15, 2016.  Based on the information provided to us on January 15, 2016, we are 
confirming that your client’s bank is exempt from registration as a broker-dealer in VT.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
Amanda Smith 
Registration & Consumer Affairs Administrator  
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